## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

·			Ì
FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOPMENT	)		11 3 m
CORPORATION, a Florida corpora-	)		
tion; OCEAN WOODS, INC., a	)	MAR 2	5 1905 C
Florida corporation; THOMAS	)	<b>19.5</b>	
WASDIN, et al.,	)	CLERK, St. A.	LUS COURT A
Defendants/Petitioners,	)	Ву	h
Dolonamico, i o ci i i o ci o co	Ś	Chlef Depu	ity Clerk-
vs.	į	CASE NO. 6	57,848 V
CARLOS M. ABLANEDO, et al.,	)		
•	)		
Plaintiffs/Respondents.	)		
	)		

## INITIAL BRIEF OF PETITIONERS

Appeal from the District Court of Appeal, State of Florida, Fifth District

> JOHN M. STARLING, ESQUIRE HOLLAND, STARLING & SEVERS, P.A. 509 Palm Ave., P. O. Box 669 Titusville, FL 32781-0669 (305) 267-1711

## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Plaintiffs in the lower court will be referred to herein as Plaintiffs or Respondents. Defendants in the lower court will be referred to herein as Defendants or Petitioners. Reference to the appendix and record will be either by name of the witness followed by citation (Name A- and R-) or by simple reference to the record followed by citation (A-) and (R-).

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Petitioners, FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, OCEAN WOODS, INC. and THOMAS WASDIN, were involved in a housing project located in Cape Canaveral, Florida known as Ocean Woods. The Respondents were all purchasers of housing units in Ocean Woods, which was a planned unit development consisting of single family houses, cluster homes and villas. The approved plans called for some 300 plus units and at the time of trial approximately 270 units had been completed.

A dispute arose in 1980 between Petitioners and Respondents over control of the homeowners' association and a recent increase in maintenance fees. In subsequent proceedings all claims against the Petitioners were disposed of in their favor except an amended count which raised new issues alleging, among other things, that Petitioners had fraudulently represented that the development was an ocean-front project, that a nature trail and other recreational facilities were to be provided, and that Respondents were to have control of the homeowners' association (R 1202-1204; A-38).

The case went to trial by jury on the fraud count and the lower court directed a verdict as to all alleged frauds other than the alleged representations concerning the nature trail and ocean-front development (R 1431, Lines 1-16; A-42). The lower court also directed a verdict for Petitioners on the Respondents' request for punitive damages. The jury returned verdicts for the 50 Respondents for an aggregate of \$304,600.25 in compensatory damages based upon the two issues presented to the jury (R 2253-2302).

An appeal was taken by the Petitioners to the District Court of Appeal, Fifth District, as to the final judgment based on the jury verdict and the Respondents cross-appealed the directed verdict as to punitive damages. The Fifth District Court of Appeal determined that the lower court erred in submitting the nature trail fraud issue to the jury, but that there was no error in submission of the ocean-front project fraud issue to the jury. The District Court affirmed the judgment because it said Petitioners should have requested separate verdict forms for each issue rather than general verdict forms. The Fifth District Court of Appeal also held that the lower court had committed error in striking the claim of the Respondents for punitive damages and remanded the cause for a new trial on the issue of punitive damages only. First Interstate Development Corp. v. Ablanedo, 476 So.2d 692 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985) (A-1).

This Court accepted jurisdiction of the petition for review filed herein by the Petitioners on the basis that this Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction to entertain this case on the merits since the decision of the District Court of Appeal, State of Florida, Fifth District, in <u>First Interstate Development Corp. v. Ablanedo</u>, <u>supra</u>, expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another District Court of Appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. The discretionary jurisdiction of this Honorable Court is based upon Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution, as well as Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

This action was commenced by the Respondents on October 22, 1980, by filing an eight count complaint against Petitioners and Ocean Woods Homeowners Association, Inc. (R 1790-1967). Petitioners promptly moved

to dismiss the complaint and strike certain portions thereof (R 1968-1971), and by order of the Court dated January 20, 1981, Petitioners' motions were granted and the complaint was dismissed (R 1972-1973).

On January 29, 1981, Respondents filed their amended complaint (R 1974-1983; A-22) after which Petitioners again moved to dismiss (R 1984-1986). On May 4, 1981, the trial court entered its order dismissing count three of the amended complaint with prejudice and denying the motion as to all other counts. (R 1987). On May 27, 1981, Petitioners filed their answer to the remaining seven counts of the amended complaint, along with affirmative defenses (R 1989-1993; A-32).

Respondents moved for a temporary injunction with respect to count five of the amended complaint on May 15, 1981 (R 1988) and on July 14, 1981 a temporary injunction was granted as to the assessment and collection of certain maintenance fees. (R 1998-1999). In a series of motions to vacate, modify and hold parties in contempt, the temporary injunction was finally vacated, thereby rendering count five of the amended complaint fully litigated. (R 2005-2018; 2016-2019; 2020-2025; 2052-2056; 2057-2070; 2071-2077; 2079; 2080-2081; 2085).

On January 8, 1982, Respondents moved to add additional parties plaintiff to the amended complaint (R 2088) which motion was granted on February 23, 1982 (R 2089). On June 1, 1983, Respondents moved to amend count four of the amended complaint, the fraud count, to add for the first time alleged misrepresentations concerning the ocean-front, the nature trail and other recreational amenities. (R 2202-2204; A-38). Petitioners agreed to allow the amendment by stipulation filed June 8, 1983 (R 2209; A-41).

On October 5, 1983, Petitioners moved for summary judgment as to all remaining counts of the amended complaint (R 2219-2245). After a hearing on the motion, the court entered an order filed November 10, 1983, granting Petitioners' summary judgment as to counts one, three, five and six of the amended complaint (R 2447). By stipulation of the parties, it was agreed that count eight (accounting) would be tried before the court after the conclusion of the jury trial on the remaining counts two, four and seven.

Prior to the trial Petitioners filed a motion to impose sanctions against certain of the listed Plaintiffs who had failed to appear for deposition (R 2439-2443). By order filed November 10, 1983, the claims of those Plaintiffs were stricken and judgment was entered against them (R 2444-2446).

On October 31, 1983, jury trial on Counts two, four and seven of the amended complaint was commenced and continued until November 9, 1983. At the start of the trial, Respondents withdrew count two of the amended complaint from consideration. During trial, the trial court granted a directed verdict for the Petitioners as to count seven (R 1430; Lines 17-21; A-42) and also granted a directed verdict as to any claim for punitive damages related to count four (fraud) (R 1429; Lines 21-26 and 1430; Lines 1-2; A-42). The fraud count was presented by Respondents as four distinct issues and misrepresentations; to wit: the promise of a nature trail; the promise of an "ocean-front" development; the promise to provide recreational facilities; and the promises regarding control of the homeowner's association. The trial court granted directed verdicts for Petitioners on the issues of recreational facilities and control of the homeowners association (R 1431, Lines 1-16; A-42).

Finally, the trial court granted a directed verdict on all counts as to the following Plaintiffs, to wit: William S. and Mary Winchester; Marvin E. Banks, Jr.; Frank D. and Linda G. Harris; Eleanor Morgan Labuda; Nick J. and Deborah J. Billias; Ethel M. Frank; Eleanor Nelson; Carl A. Asp, III; Norris L. and Dolzaleen Fisher; Lucy Vann; Roderick F. Woods; Harry A. and Mary S. Kadan. (R 1677; Lines 4-12). At the conclusion of the trial, after 1 hour and 10 minutes of deliberation, the jury returned verdicts in favor of the Respondents and against Petitioners, OCEAN WOODS, INC. and FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, and against Petitioner, THOMAS E. WASDIN, on four verdicts (R 2253-2302).

On November 18, 1983, Petitioners filed motions for new trial (R 2454-2456; A-17) and for directed verdict notwithstanding the verdict (R 2450-2453; A-13). The motions were denied by order of the Court filed December 30, 1983 (R 2473; A-21). The verdicts were reduced to final judgments in the aggregate amount of \$304,600.25, which were rendered on December 30, 1983. (R 2471-2472; A-5). On January 5, 1984, Petitioners filed their notice of appeal of the final judgment and order denying new trial with the District Court of Appeal, Fifth District (R 2474).

## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

#### BACKGROUND

The Petitioners in this case, OCEAN WOODS, INC., FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, and THOMAS WASDIN, were involved in a housing project located in Cape Canaveral, Florida and known as OCEAN WOODS. The project was originally conceived by Petitioner, FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, which was the original owner of the property which was to be developed (R 1187, 2780-2807). Ocean Woods was designed as a planned unit development and Appellant, FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOP-MENT CORPORATION was originally responsible for obtaining the zoning approval from the City of Cape Canaveral. (R 1190) Following initial project approval, FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION sold the land and the project to Petitioner, OCEAN WOODS, INC., under an oral per-unit sales contract, (R-1192). Petitioner, OCEAN WOODS, INC. then proceeded to develop the project, purchasing the land from FIRST INTERSTATE in stages as development progressed (R 1192-1193). Petitioner, THOMAS C. WASDIN was at all times the president of Petitioner, OCEAN WOODS, INC. (R 1320).

The Respondents herein, as well as the other Plaintiffs who were at various times parties to the lawsuit were all purchasers of units in Ocean Woods. These purchases were made during the years 1978 through 1981. (R 1-1179). In most cases, the units were purchased directly from Petitioner, OCEAN WOODS, INC. (R 1-1179) However, nine of the Plaintiffs at trial purchased from non-associated third parties. (Asp - R 278; Nelson - R 370; Harris - R 813; Banks - R 834; Labuda - R 995; Winchester - R 1061; Billias - R 1091; R. Wilkerson - R 941; Hecht - R 1174).

The property which is the subject matter of this litigation is a parcel of land located in Cape Canaveral, Florida between Atlantic Avenue and the Atlantic Ocean. (R 2966). The project was developed as a planned unit development consisting of single family homes, cluster homes and villas. (R 2966). In large part, the open areas of the development have been left in their natural state to create a natural type environment (R 2966). The approved plans call for some three hundred plus units and at the time of trial approximately 270 units had been completed or were under construction (R 1583). The original plans in 1973 called for very limited recreational facilities (R 2795), but once OCEAN WOODS, INC. took over the project the recreational facilities to be provided were increased substantially. (R 1564-1570). At the time of trial, the following recreational amenities had been provided or were in the final stages of construction: a nature trail along the south boundary, a nature trail from the eastern end of Ridgewood Avenue to the Ocean along the north boundary, two swimming pools, tennis courts, racquetball courts, a club house, a putting green, shuffleboard courts and a beach picnic area (R 2966 and other references cited below). addition to all of the above, OCEAN WOODS, INC., has an option to purchase the land immediately to the east of the planned unit development (R 1577-1578).

## THE LAWSUIT

In the summer of 1980, a dispute arose between Respondents and Petitioner, OCEAN WCCDS, INC., over control of the homeowners association and a recent raise in maintenance fees. (R 302-304). A pool side meeting was held with representatives of the homeowners and the developer present. (R 302-304, 127-130; A-51). Subsequent meetings were

unable to resolve the dispute, so in October, 1980, the homeowners formed a litigation committee and filed suit against the developer (R 1790-1967). It is very important to note that the only concerns addressed in the initial complaint were those of control of the homeowners association and maintenance fees (R 1790-1967; A-22).

As set forth in the statement of the case, the case proceeded for several years through various hearings and proceedings to determine who had the right to control the homeowners association and make assessments. In December 1981, most of these preliminary matters were resolved in favor of the Petitioners (R 2085).

For the next eighteen months there was very little activity in the suit and the case was still framed as a suit for control over the association and maintenance fees. (R 1974-1983). Then, in June 1983, Petitioners amended their complaint to raise some entirely new issues and allegations. (R 2202-2204; A-38) For the first time, Respondents were claiming that Petitioners had fraudulently represented certain aspects of the development including that it was an ocean-front project, that a nature trail and other recreation facilities were to be provided, and that the Appellees were to have control of the homeowners association (R 2202-2204). It was these newly raised fraud issues which now formed the basis of the upcoming trial.

### THE TESTIMONY

As the Court is well aware from the size of the transcript in this case, the trial covered eight days of argument and testimony involving many issues, some of which are not the subject of this appeal. The remainder of this statement of facts will be devoted only to the one issue of alleged fraud with respect to the "ocean-front" concept. The

disposition of the other issues is reflected in the statement of the case.

## "THE OCEAN FRONT"

The "ocean front" issue arises from paragraph 36(d) of the amended Count IV, wherein it is alleged that Petitioners represented to Respondents "that the entire project was a 'beach front' project..." (R 2202-2204). Amended Count IV goes on to allege that this representation was intentionally made to induce the Respondents to purchase, that the Respondents relied thereon in making their purchase, and that Respondents suffered damages as a result thereof. (R 2202-2204)

The testimony offered to prove the existence of the representation by Respondents was of several distinct types. First, there was a class of Respondents who testified that they were told that Ocean Woods was a "beach front" development by various members of the OCEAN WOODS, INC., sales staff. (Jakeway R 48; Harrington R 117; Gerron R 151; Richard R 195; Craven R 246; McDonald R 336-337; Finigan R 407; Wood R 417-418; Slattery R 433; Boatman R 449; Holmes R 462; Szczepanik R 493; Evans R 550-557; Rutkowski R 578; Roseland R 607; Qualls R 627; MacConnachie R 713; Forrest R 721; Kemp R 744; Newman R 754; Spellman R 785; Ablanedo R 795; Rooney R 875; Crosby R 898; Bragg R 913; A. Wilkerson R 929; Coleman R 954; Latzios R 980; Dorofee R 1022; Johnson R 1038; Rodriquez R 1132; Buckey R 1144; King R 1166; Pelham R 1303).

Second, there was a group of Respondents who testified that they had no conversations on this subject, but who relied exclusively on the advertising brochure (R 2709-2711) which they believed represented the planned unit development as having 600 feet of ocean frontage (Boyles R 319-334; Sanders R 526-547; Hatchett R 636-650; Hackney R 680;

Stenglein R 764; Levinson R 864; Manning R 886; Bassett R 965; Lloyd R 1103; Dunn R 1126; Connors R 1155; Donnelan R 1241). One of the Respondents claimed he was told that the property fronting the beach "would be developed by Ocean Woods" at some unspecified later date (McAra R 1007). Two of the Respondents failed to state what representation was made, but simply testified "I thought" that the property at the beach was included in the planned unit development (Scholar R 358; Miller R 733).

Within the first class of Respondents, those who had oral conversations concerning the boundaries of the planned unit development, there was an interesting sub-class who claimed to have been told that some type of construction different from the rest of Ocean Woods would be located on the beach front tract (A-60). Some of these Respondents claimed to have been told that high rise condominiums were planned for the beach front property. (Slattery R 433; Evans R 551; Bassett R 965; Latzios R 980; McAra R 1007). Others claimed to have been told that there were no plans at that time, but that whatever was built would be different from the rest of Ocean Woods (Jakeway R 48; Harrington R 117; Gerron R 151; Richard R 195; Wood R 417-418; Boatman R 449; Rutkowski R 578). One of the Respondents even testified that he was told "there were no plans for development at that time". (Bragg R 914) Another of the Respondents testified that she was told that Ocean Woods, Inc. did not even own the land (McDonald R 336-337).

Petitioners contradicted the testimony as to oral representations by the testimony of the Ocean Woods, Inc. sales staff to the effect that they never told anyone that the property next to the beach was part of the Ocean Woods planned unit development (Cross R 1217-1219; Foy 1530-1534). The sales brochure which all of the Respondents claimed to

have received does not use the term "ocean-front project" or "ocean-front development". (R 2708; A-46) The filmed video presentation clearly marks the boundaries of the planned unit development so as not to include the ocean-front parcel in question, and in fact that parcel was clearly labeled for future apartment construction. (R 2966, Lewis R 1439). The maps in evidence do not show the ocean front parcel as a part of the planned unit development (R 2584, R 2809). Testimony from some of the Respondents themselves showed that in the summer of 1980 they not only did not believe the ocean-front property was included in their development, but specifically told the Petitioners that they did not want that property to be a part of the planned unit development (Asp R 302-304; Harrington R 127-130; A-51). Two of the Plaintiffs who testified at trial claimed to have been misled about the boundaries to the project when in fact they purchased their units after the suit was filed (R. Wilkerson R 941-950; Hecht R 1174-1179). Petitioners pointed out the alleged misrepresentations were raised for the first time in June, 1983, almost three years after the initial suit was filed (R 2202-2204). Petitioners also offered the testimony of two owners, both of whom had been Plaintiffs, who stated that no representations were about the beach-front being included in the planned unit development and that that was not what the lawsuit had been about (Benedict R 1444-1449; Haynes R 1450-1456). Lastly, eight of the Respondents testified that they had been misled by the Petitioners despite the fact that they purchased their units from non-associated third parties. (Frank R 215; Asp R 278; Nelson R 370; Harris R 813; Banks R 834; Labuda R 995; Winchester R 1061; Billias R 1091).

## DAMAGES

On the issue of damages, Respondents offered the testimony of an appraiser, Christopher Edwards, but only as to the issue of damages from the alleged "ocean-front project" representation (R 1256-1300). The majority of Mr. Edwards' testimony was properly excluded on the grounds that Mr. Edwards had not done any appraisals and did not have a sufficient factual basis upon which to base an opinion. (R 1259-1260; A-80) Over objection, however, Mr. Edwards was allowed to testify that properties in Ocean Woods planned unit development would be worth less if the ocean-front parcel were not a part of the planned unit development (R 1296, Lines 9-18; A-80).

The only other testimony offered by Respondents as to damages was lay opinions of the Respondents themselves. Over continuing objection, each Respondent was allowed to testify as to the amount he or she paid for their unit and then venture a speculative guess as to what they believed it was actually worth based on the alleged representations and what they know today. (R 42-1320) In every case, the Respondents testified that the actual value of their property was less than what they paid for it (R 42-1320). Some of the Respondents made an effort to apportion their damage testimony between the various alleged misrepresentations, but most did not (R 42-1320; Richard R 209, Lines 7-18).

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