IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FIRST INTERSTATE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Florida corporation, OCEAN WOODS, INC., a Florida corporation, THOMAS WASDIN, et al,

Defendants/Petitioners,

SID J WHATE
APR 14 1986
CLERK, SUPREME COURT
CHAST POSSERV CLOCK

CASE NO. 67,848

CARLOS M. ABLANEDO, et al,

Plaintiffs/Respondents.

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE/CROSS/APPELLANT
AND
INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLEE/CROSS/APPELLANT

APPEAL FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA, FIFTH DISTRICT

KENNETH A. STUDSTILL of KENNETH A. STUDSTILL, P.A. 503 Palm Avenue Titusville, Florida 32796 (305) 269-0666

Counsel for Plaintiffs/ Appellees

TOPICAL

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial of this case of fraud lasted from October 31, 1983 to November 9, 1983. At the conclusion of the trial, the jury found for the Plaintiffs and against the Defendants. However, before submitting the case to the jury, the Trial Court directed a verdict with respect to the Plaintiffs' prayer on the issue of punitive damages, and it is the Plaintiffs' contention on appeal that the issue of punitive damages in a **fraud** case is not a

threshold question for the court to decide, but rather must be submitted to the jury in every case of fraud. Since every Appellate Court in this State has held that in a claim for fraud punitive damages is an issue for the jury, this argument could not possibly be a basis for this Court's exercising its discretionary jurisdiction.

As to Defendants' argument concerning the appropriateness of the 5th District's reversing the Trial Court's striking the Plaintiffs' prayer for punitive damages, and then remanding the cause for a new trial on the issue of punitive damages only, Plaintiffs' submit that because of this Court's holding in Lassiter v. International Union of Operating Engineers, 349 So.2d 622 (Fla. 1976) (A-119), which established the principle of law that an award of punitive damages need not bear a reasonable relationship to the actual or compensatory damages awarded, the cases cited in support of Defendants' position are no longer viable and the post-Lassiter decisions are not in conflict with The overwhelming majority of the case law, including at least one decision of this Court, Bankers Multiple Line Insurance Co. v. Farish, 464 So.2d 530 (Fla. 1985), is against the defendant's position and in favor of affirming compensatory damages and remanding for a new trial on punitive damages alone.

The Plaintiffs' position comports with logic and reason as well as the law. The decision in favor of Defendants under this point would <u>inter alia</u> abolish the interest earned to date on the original judgment, and it could never be recouped. Furthermore, this particular issue was not raised in the original briefs by the Defendants, and was therefore untimely raised in the

Defendants' Motion for a New Hearing after the 5th DCA had rendered its decision. The delay may very well have prejudiced the rights of the Defendants in their decision whether or not to pursue a new trial on punitive damages only. The issue of punitive damages was not submitted to the trial jury of the unrelenting efforts of the Defendants in this case, and it would be a bad policy, which would allow those who induced error to benefit thereby on appeal. Such a ruling would foster and encourage unprincipled counsel to make untenable legal arguments in the trial court to create error upon which they could then take advantage on appeal.

The 5th DCA in its opinion found that, of the two allegations, which were submitted to the jury on the issue of fraud, the one about a nature trail, should not have been submitted. However, since there a was general verdict, which was not objected to by the Defendants, the 5th DCA refused to set aside the compensatory verdict. The 5th DCA found there was clearly sufficient evidence to support the jury's determination concerning the misrepresentation by Defendants the development was ocean front. The Plaintiffs contend there was sufficent evidence to support the trial court's decision not to direct a verdict on the issue of the nature trail, and that that particular allegation of fraud was properly submitted to the jury. On the other hand, if it was improperly submitted (as opined by the 5th DCA), the verdict as rendered by the jury should not be disturbed because of the "Two Issue Rule", which requires an Appeal Court to assume the verdict was reached on the

basis of the theory which is free from any error. Variety Childrens Hospital v. Perkins, 382 So.2d 331 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1980).

There was no error in the trial court submitting to the jury the fraud allegation the project was "beach front". every element of fraud was clearly proven by the Plaintiffs. Each Plaintiff testified they were told that the project extended to the Atlantic Ocean, when, in fact, it did not. Each Plaintiff was handed and relied upon Exhibit 16, a brochure which clearly indicated in more than one place that the project extended from State Road AlA to the Atlantic Ocean. In addition, both the Plaintiffs' expert and Defendants' expert, testified that the Plaintiffs' property, irrespective of the purchase price, would be worth more if the project extended to the Atlantic Ocean as it was represented. The Plaintiffs themselves testified to the contract price of their individual parcel and as to the value of their property as it actually existed. The proper measure of damages in an action for fraudulent misrepresentation concerning real property is the difference between the actual value of the property and its value had the represented facts regarding it been true. West Florida Land Co. v. Studebaker, 37 Fla. 28, 19 So. 176,179. Therefore, there was overwhelming evidence of this aspect of the fraudulent transaction perpetrated by Defendants against the Plaintiffs. With respect to Plaintiff's testimony as to the value of their own property, the rule has long been established in Florida as in every other jurisdiction that an owner may testify as to the value of his own property.

During the trial, Defendants' expert in answer to Plaintiff's question, gave his opinion as to the value of the

ocean front tract located east of the Ocean Woods planned unit development, which was the particular tract, which was fraudulently represented as being part of the Ocean Woods development. His opinion was entirely appropriate, since the extraordinarily high value of the property provided a strong motive for the Defendants not to include it in the Ocean Woods Project and was certainly relevant to show the accuracy of the Plaintiffs opinion as to the damages caused by the failure of the Defendants to include that particular property in the project. True, the focus of damages in this case was on the value at the time Plaintiffs made their purchase, but the value before and after purchase is certainly relevant. In addition, Defendants' counsel represented that present day values are material, because this fraud was a continuing tort.

The opinion of Plaintiffs' expert, a qualified real estate broker experienced in appraising, which was limited to expressing the obvious - namely that the individual units in a project would have a higher value if the project was contiguous to the Atlantic Ocean, was legally relevant and therefore admissable.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WHICH REVERSED A DIRECTED VERDICT FOR THE PETITIONERS ON THE ISSUE OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH PRIOR DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AND OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL.

Contrary to Defendants' contentions, Florida Appellate Courts are unanimous in holding that in actions involving fraud, the issue of punitive damages is not a threshold question to be determined initially by the trial court, but rather must always be presented to the jury for its consideration.

This principle was firmly established in <u>Winn & Lovett</u> <u>Grocery Co. v. Archer</u>, 171 So. 214, 221 (Fla. 1936), a case heavily relied upon by the Defendants, where this Court stated:

... Exemplary damages are given solely as a punishment where torts are committed with **fraud**, actual malice, or deliberate violence or oppression,... (emphasis added)

In <u>Wackenhut Corp. v. Canty</u>, 359 So.2d 430, 435 (Fla. 1978), another nonfraud case cited by the Defendants in support of their position, this Court in rendering its decision said the following:

...A legal basis for punitive damages exists where torts are committed in an outrageous manner or with **fraud**, malice, wantonness or oppression... (emphasis added)

The exact language set out above is repeated in a more recent decision of this Court in <u>Arab Termite and Pest Control v.</u>

<u>Jenkins</u>, 409 So.2d 1039 (Fla. 1982), another nonfraud case cited as support for Defendants' position.

Como Oil Company, Inc. v. O'Laughlin, 466 So.2d 1061 (Fla.

1985) is again another nonfraud case relied upon by the Defendants. This case merely holds what the Plaintiffs concede, that in a **negligence** case the issue of whether the acts of the tort feasor are sufficiently outrageous to warrant submission of the question of punitive damages to the jury is a threshold issue for the court to decide.

Defendants cite only one **fraud** case as authority for their position the issue of punitive damages is a threshold decision of the trial court, and that is <u>Schief v. Live Supply</u>, <u>Inc.</u>, 431 So.2d 602 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983), pet. for rev. denied 440 So.2d 352 (Fla. 1983). (A-131). That case does not hold the trial court in a case of fraud can strike a punitive damage claim. It merely holds it is error for the trial court to insert the word "fraud" in the standard punitive damage instruction, so as to mislead the jury to believe punitive damages should always be awarded in fraud cases. The Third District in Schief stated on page 603:

..Whether a fraudulent act is sufficiently outrageous so as to justify an award of punitive damages is a question for the jury....

Schief is one of the cases cited by the Fifth District below as authority in opposition to the Defendants' position under this point. (A-131). The Fourth District in <u>Hutchens v. Weinberger</u>, 452 So.2d 1024, 1025 (4th DCA 1984), (A-115), interpreted <u>Schief</u> observing:

... As we noted in **Schief**, whether the fraudulent act is sufficiently outrageous is a question for the jury....

The last case cited by Defendants in support of their argument, is <u>Tuel v. Hertz Corporation</u>, 296 So.2d 597 (Fla. 3d

DCA 1974), a standard automobile negligence case. Plaintiffs' do not disagree with the Defendants' argument that in a case of that nature the issue of punitive damages would be a threshold issue for the judge to determine.

The whole question of whether punitive damages is a threshold issue for the trial court in fraud cases was put to rest in <u>Walsh v. Alfidi</u>, 448 So.2d 1084,1087 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984) (A-150). There the First District states as follows:

...Whether a fraudulent act is "sufficiently outrageous so as to justify an award of punitive damages is a question for the jury." Schief v. Live Supply, Inc., supra, at 603; Tinker v. De Maria Porsche Audi, Inc.

In summary, all Florida Appellate Courts have held that fraudulent acts are, <u>ipso facto</u>, sufficient to warrant consideration, but not necessarily the assessment, by the jury of punitive damages so as to eliminate the need for any initial inquiry by the trial court as to the propriety of punitive damages.

POINT II

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WHICH REMANDED THE CAUSE FOR A TRIAL ON THE ISSUE OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES ONLY EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH PRIOR DECISIONS OF OTHER FLORIDA DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL.

Since the issue, of whether the court below erred in ordering a new trial solely on the question of punitive damages was first untimely raised in Defendants' unsuccessful Motion for Rehearing and not addressed in their briefs they cannot assert it now as a basis for this Court to accept jurisdiction. The failure of the Defendants to assert their position on this issue in a timely manner has prejudiced the Plaintiffs in that Plain-

tiffs, had they timely known of the Defendants' position under this Point, could have voluntarily dismissed the crossclaim upon which Plaintiffs ultimately prevailed in the 5th DCA. voluntary dismissal cannot be entered after a decision on the merits. Rule 9.350, Fla. R. App. P. Since Plaintiffs were denied the opportunity to evaluate their position vis-a-vis to this particular issue and perhaps decide to accept the compensatory award and abandon their pursuit for a new trial on punitive damages only, they have lost a valuable option. addition, Defendants' could become insolvent or their assets intentionally wasted, and a new trial on all damages would truly result in a pyric victory. Last, but not least, a decision in favor of Defendants under this Point would abolish the interest earned to date on the original Judgment. Up to March 6, 1986, that interest amounted to a sum in excess of \$82,000.00. lost interest could never be recouped. It would be a bad policy which would allow those who induced error to benefit thereby.

Even if timely presented, Defendants' position is without merit since all the relevant cases cited by Defendants were decided prior to <u>Lassiter v. International Union of Operating Engineers</u>, 349 So.2d 622 (Fla. 1976), which established the principle of law that an award of punitive damages need not bear a reasonable relationship to the actual or compensatory damages awarded. (A-119). <u>Lassiter</u> was reaffirmed by this Court's decision in <u>Arab Termite and Pest Control v. Jenkins</u>, 409 So.2d 1039, 1042-3 (Fla. 1982), where it was acknowledged:

...We were right to disavow the rule that punitive damages must bear some reasonable relation to compensatory damages, Lassiter v.

International Union of Operating Engineers, 349 So.2d 622 (Fla. 1976), because the amount of compensation for loss is an entirely separate matter from the amount of punitive damaqes. Punitive damages apply to wrongdoing, not covered by the criminal law, where the private injuries inflicted partake of public wrongs. They are to be measured by the enormity of the offense, entirely aside from the measure of compensation for the injured plaintiff. Ingram v. Pettit, So.2d 922 (Fla. 1976); Campbell v. Government Employees Insurance Co., 306 So.2d 525 (Fla. 1974); Florida Railway & Navigation Company v. Webster, 25 Fla. 394, 5 So. 714 (1889)....

Since there is no necessary nexus between compensatory and punitive damages, it is not necessary to have both punitive and compensatory damages considered by the same jury. Of the cases cited by the Defendants, <u>DuPuis v. 79th Street Hotel</u>, <u>Inc.</u>, 231 So.2d 532 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1970) is one of only two cases which actually hold it is better practice and procedure for one jury to determine both compensatory and punitive damages. However, as previously pointed out, this case was decided prior to <u>Lassiter</u>, supra, and in <u>DuPuis</u> the reversal initially was on **compensatory** damages only. It was only upon a rehearing that the Court determined it would be better to order a new trial on all damages.

The wisdom of <u>DuPuis</u> and <u>Gillette v. Stapleton</u>, 336 So.2d 1226 (2nd DCA 1976), another pre-Lassiter case cited by Defendants, can only be understood when viewed in the light of the then existing law, which required some reasonable relationship between compensatory and punitive damages. The necessity of such a relationship made it seem reasonable to require one jury to consider compensatory and punitive damages. However, in light of Lassiter, DuPuis and Gillette are anachronisms.

v. Liberman, 139 So.2d 485 (Fla. 2d DCA 1962), is actually no support for their position that the Fifth District should have reversed and ordered a new trial on both compensatory and punitive damages. If the case holds anything at all, it is that the Plaintiff's cross-appeal below should have failed in its entirety, since the Plaintiffs did not ask for a new trial on compensatory damages as well as punitive damages. Baynard indicates that if the plaintiffs there had wanted a new trial on punitive damages, it would have been necessary for them to have requested a new trial on compensatory as well as punitive damages, and because they failed to do so, their prayer for a trial solely on the issue of punitive damages was denied.

If the reasoning of <u>Baynard</u> was applied in the case <u>sub</u> <u>judice</u>, at most, the opinion below should be modified to an affirmance of the compensatory damages, and a denial of the cross-appeal. However, <u>Baynard</u> has no application to the case at bar, since after <u>Lassiter</u>, punitive and compensatory damages need not have any relationship to each other and thus can be independently determined by separate juries.

The first post-Lassiter case cited by the Defendants, White v. Burger King Corp., 433 So.2d 540 (4th DCA 1983) provides them little support. Though the Fourth District did remand the case for trial on all isues, which included punitive damages, it is apparent from the decision the Fourth District felt punitive damages must be reconsidered in light of Mercury Motors Express, Inc. v. Smith, 393 So.2d 545 (Fla. 1981), which dramatically

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